

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA
COMMITTEE ON LAW AND GOVERNMENT

Room 400, City Hall
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Wednesday, February 13, 2013
10:10 a.m.

PRESENT:

COUNCILMAN WILLIAM K. GREENLEE, CHAIR
COUNCILMAN W. WILSON GOODE, JR.
COUNCILMAN BOBBY HENON
COUNCILMAN JAMES KENNEY

BILL 120960 - An ordinance amending Chapter 21-1700 of The Philadelphia Code, entitled "Publication of Notices by City," by revising provisions concerning how and when certain required notices shall be published and advertised...

BILL 121002 - An ordinance amending Title 10 of The Philadelphia Code, entitled "Regulation of Individual Conduct and Activity," to provide for the licensing of certain horses...

- - -

1

2

COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Good

3

morning, everyone. Thank you for your

4

patience. This is the Committee on Law

5

and Government.

6

For the record, we have a

7

quorum with Councilman Kenney, the Vice

8

Chair of the Committee; Councilman Henon;

9

and Councilman Goode; and myself Bill

10

Greenlee as the Chair.

11

Ms. Marconi, will you please

12

read the title of the first bill before

13

us today.

14

THE CLERK: Bill No. 120960, an

15

ordinance amending Chapter 21-1700 of The

16

Philadelphia Code, entitled "Publication

17

of Notices by City," by revising

18

provisions concerning how and when

19

certain required notices shall be

20

published and advertised, all under

21

certain terms and conditions.

22

(Witness approached witness

23

table.)

24

THE CLERK: Brian Abernathy.

25

COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 Mr. Abernathy, good morning.

3 MR. ABERNATHY: Good morning,
4 Councilman Greenlee and members of the
5 Committee. My name is Brian Abernathy.
6 I am Chief of Staff to the Managing
7 Director. I'm here to testify in support
8 of Bill No. 120960.

9 Bill No. 120960 changes the
10 advertising requirements for City Council
11 hearings and notices from being posted in
12 three daily newspapers to the daily with
13 the largest circulation and the City's
14 legal newspaper. The bill also provides
15 for posting on the City's website should
16 either publication not be in circulation.

17 Over the past three years, the
18 City's average annual costs related to
19 advertisements concerning Council's
20 actions are \$693,000. We expect this
21 legislation to save approximately
22 \$200,000 per year.

23 I'd also like to offer an
24 amendment to the legislation that changes
25 the advertising requirements for

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 department regulations and notices in an
3 identical manner. I believe that
4 amendment has been circulated as well.

5 Over the past three years, the
6 City's average annual costs related to
7 advertisements concerning department
8 actions, such as regulations, are around
9 \$40,000. We expect this amendment to
10 save roughly \$12,000 annually in
11 advertising costs.

12 Finally, I want to thank
13 Council President Clarke for his efforts
14 on this legislation. Like him, we know
15 that public notice and transparency is
16 vital to our work. However, with a
17 rapidly changing environment for news
18 publications, rising costs, and increased
19 demands on City services, we must balance
20 the needs for notification and fiscal
21 stewardship and continue to find new ways
22 to provide the public information and
23 increased access.

24 This concludes my testimony and
25 I'll be happy to answer any additional

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002
2 questions.

3 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
4 you.

5 Are there any questions?

6 (No response.)

7 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: And I
8 know we have amendments. I'm sorry. I
9 got distracted there a second. Could you
10 tell us the amendment, just highlight
11 what that is.

12 MR. ABERNATHY: The amendment
13 actually provides for the identical
14 requirements for City regulations as
15 would be for City Council ads.

16 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Okay.
17 Got you.

18 Any questions?

19 (No response.)

20 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
21 none, thank you very much.

22 Ms. Marconi, I think we have a
23 little panel coming up.

24 THE CLERK: Bob Bogle, Jennifer
25 Clark. I'm not sure if Dennis Walsh is

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 here.

3 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Is

4 Mr. Walsh here?

5 (No response.)

6 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Please,

7 if you both come up.

8 (Witnesses approached witness

9 table.)

10 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Whoever

11 would like to go first, please identify

12 yourself for the record and proceed.

13 MR. BOGLE: I certainly would

14 refuse to go first with such a charming

15 lady. Class and distinction would

16 require that.

17 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: You are the

18 best.

19 MS. CLARK: That means I'm up.

20 I'm Jennifer Clark. I'm

21 Executive Sales Director at Metro

22 Philadelphia, and I am here based on the

23 fact that due to the Code, currently the

24 notices are not placed with Metro because

25 we're not a paid publication. So one

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002
2 of -- I have actually some visuals and
3 things that I can share with you that
4 show the landscape of the paid newspaper
5 market has changed, and one of the things
6 that we've been able to work with in this
7 market as well as our other markets
8 throughout the world is that because we
9 are free, we've been able to really
10 capture the public, the audience in
11 Philadelphia as well as New York and
12 Boston where we have publications in the
13 U.S.

14 In Philadelphia alone, the
15 circulation has decreased for the paid
16 publications about 27 percent in the past
17 couple of years. And that is not to, of
18 course, speak poorly about the
19 competitors, but to say that the
20 landscape has changed and different
21 methods are necessary to reach more of
22 the public.

23 We are currently the largest
24 publication in Philadelphia right now.
25 Our readership has grown over 20 percent

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 in the past year. And also, one of the
3 key things that you're looking to reach
4 are the right type of readers. Metro has
5 a younger demographic, whereas the paid
6 publications are -- their median age is
7 upwards of nearing 60, and Metro has been
8 able to capture that 40-year-old median
9 age, employed people in Philadelphia that
10 would be the public that you're hoping to
11 reach with these notices.

12 We are currently carrying some
13 notices from the IRS. We're carrying
14 some liquor licenses, some name changes.
15 And I believe that has been because our
16 cost is quite attractive to those
17 advertisers. So we've been able to offer
18 also a cost saving, which, from
19 Mr. Abernathy's comments, that is a
20 concern as well.

21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Okay.
22 All right. Thank you. If we have any
23 questions, let Mr. Bogle go first and
24 then we'll ask both.

25 MR. BOGLE: Good morning,

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 Councilman.

3 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Good

4 morning.

5 MR. BOGLE: I'm Bob Bogle with
6 the Philadelphia Tribune. Thank you for
7 providing the opportunity to come before
8 you in reference to Bill 120960. It is a
9 bill of which we strongly overwhelmingly
10 support.

11 In spite of the fact that we do
12 in fact carry legal notices, we are
13 denied many because of current
14 restriction. We're a newspaper that
15 services the entire Philadelphia
16 community as well other counties. I'm
17 not here to sell the Tribune, but we are
18 the largest audited newspaper in the
19 county at this time. But I can tell
20 she's a good salesperson.

21 I believe that it would be
22 helpful if you do change the current
23 requirements by providing greater
24 opportunity for exposure for what we call
25 legal notices. Right now it is confined

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 to the newspapers that you've heard
3 about. And I believe it will provide
4 opportunity for a greater portion of the
5 Philadelphia community in particular to
6 see these notices.

7 There are other opportunities
8 on our website, which are conveyed at no
9 additional cost, which we believe is a
10 benefit to these notices, and there are
11 probably other benefits of which I'm
12 really not articulating today. But I
13 fully support this bill.

14 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Okay.
15 Thank you very much. And as you said,
16 this is Council President Clarke's bill,
17 but the idea is to be able to open up the
18 possibilities to other publications like
19 both of yours and others.

20 Any questions?

21 (No response.)

22 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
23 none, thank you both very much.

24 MS. CLARK: Thank you very
25 much.

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 MR. BOGLE: Thank you all for
3 the opportunity.

4 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Is there
5 anyone else here to testify on this bill,
6 120960?

7 (No response.)

8 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
9 none, Ms. Marconi, will you please read
10 the title of the other bill before us
11 today.

12 THE CLERK: Bill No. 121002, an
13 ordinance amending Title 10 of The
14 Philadelphia Code, entitled "Regulation
15 of Individual Conduct and Activity," to
16 provide for the licensing of certain
17 horses, to provide for requirements with
18 respect to keeping certain horses, and to
19 further provide for penalties and
20 enforcement, all under certain terms and
21 conditions.

22 Brian Abernathy.

23 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Good
24 morning. Please.

25 MR. ABERNATHY: Good morning,

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 Councilman --

3 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: And get
4 ready. Councilman Kenney has a comment.

5 MR. ABERNATHY: I had no doubt.

6 Good morning, Councilman
7 Greenlee and members of the Committee.
8 My name is Brian Abernathy and I am Chief
9 of Staff to the Managing Director and
10 President of the Animal Care and Control
11 Team of Philadelphia. I am here to
12 testify in support of Bill No. 121002.

13 Over the past few years, Animal
14 Control has received an increased number
15 of calls and complaints regarding horses.
16 Generally speaking, when a horse is kept
17 in a neighborhood, residents are
18 concerned by foul smells, cleanliness,
19 and noise. However, like most -- unlike
20 most major cities, the City has no law
21 governing the keeping of horses on
22 private property, and so these residents
23 have no ability to seek relief.

24 The proposed legislation will
25 require any private individual owning a

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 horse to obtain a license registering
3 that horse. The bill requires a \$100
4 license fee, a description of the horse
5 to be kept on file, and minimum
6 conditions for the private keeping of
7 horses. Those conditions include at
8 least one-quarter acre of open space per
9 horse. If space is not provided, the
10 bill provides for an exercise plan
11 approved by an equine veterinarian.
12 Other conditions include adequate
13 shelter, food, and water and the removal
14 of manure every 24 hours and that the
15 enclosure is secure.

16 Penalties for failing to comply
17 with the new licensing requirements will
18 be a \$300 fine. The police are also
19 provided the power to seize the horse in
20 extreme circumstances.

21 Know that this legislation
22 should not impact establishments that
23 already have a commercial stable license,
24 including organizations in Fairmount Park
25 or businesses that operate carriage

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002
2 companies.

3 In conclusion, we are aware
4 that some advocates do not believe that
5 this law goes far enough to protect
6 horses. The intent of this legislation,
7 however, is not necessarily to protect
8 horses, although it will improve
9 conditions for some animals, but to
10 protect residents and provide Animal
11 Control tools to resolve nuisance
12 problems in many of our neighborhoods.

13 This concludes my testimony and
14 I'm happy to answer any questions.

15 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
16 you. Just before I recognize Councilman
17 Kenney, one thing just to kind of speak
18 on the last thing you said about it's not
19 necessarily to protect horses, but, as
20 you do say, I think if horses are kept in
21 a situation that they're problems for the
22 community, the horses are probably not
23 kept well either. They're probably not
24 in a healthy situation for them. So I
25 would say it really does do both.

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 MR. ABERNATHY: Yes, sir, and I
3 would agree. I think the distinction
4 that I think Animal Control and the SPCA
5 often find themselves in is, Animal
6 Control's real responsibility as a City
7 service is to protect people from
8 animals. That's our job and that's what
9 we strive to do. PSPCA's job is to
10 protect animals from people and really
11 enforce the animal cruelty laws that are
12 governed by the state.

13 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: And it is
14 true that some cities have banned the
15 ownership of horses totally, right?

16 MR. ABERNATHY: Yes, sir.

17 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: So we're
18 trying to find that middle ground.

19 MR. ABERNATHY: Yes, sir. We
20 have a long history of horse ownership in
21 the City. It's certainly a cultural and
22 socioeconomic issue. We've tried to be
23 sensitive to those issues.

24 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Right.

25 Very good. Thank you.

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 Councilman Kenney.

3 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Just very
4 much tongue and cheek, the Parking
5 Authority was very successful in doing a
6 Parking Wars kind of. They made some
7 money. I think we ought to consider like
8 Philadelphia's version of Animal Planet
9 with you hosting it on a weekly basis.

10 MR. ABERNATHY: There is
11 actually a --

12 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: I mean,
13 from muskrats to -- what else did we do?

14 MR. ABERNATHY: Raccoons.

15 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Raccoons,
16 potbelly pigs.

17 MR. ABERNATHY: PSPCA does
18 currently have the contract for dog cops.

19 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: But you
20 would be great. You'd be terrific.

21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: I think
22 that's a compliment, Brian. I'm not
23 sure.

24 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: It's
25 absolutely a compliment.

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 MR. ABERNATHY: I think my
3 salary would increase.

4 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: I admire
5 his breadth and width of intricate
6 knowledge about animals.

7 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
8 you, Councilman.

9 Any other questions or
10 comments?

11 (No response.)

12 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
13 none, thank you, Mr. Abernathy. If you
14 could stay here, because I know we have
15 another person that wants to testify and
16 maybe you'll be able to answer a concern
17 they have.

18 MR. ABERNATHY: Absolutely.

19 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:
20 Ms. Marconi, do you have the name?

21 THE CLERK: Hillel Levinson and
22 Cynthia Turecki.

23 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Is there
24 anyone else here that wants to testify on
25 this bill?

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 (No response.)

3 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Please
4 come up.

5 (Witnesses approached witness
6 table.)

7 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: If you
8 could just identify yourself for the
9 record and make your comments.

10 MS. TURECKI: My name is
11 Cynthia Turecki. I'm with the
12 Pennsylvania Equine Council and I'm here
13 to say that we're in favor of the
14 ordinance, but we would like to make sure
15 that it doesn't cause a hardship for the
16 people who do own horses that may be on
17 slightly less than a quarter of an acre
18 and that are taking well care of their
19 horses. So, I mean, that's really the
20 basic principle of why we're here.

21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Well, I
22 can tell you -- and if Mr. Abernathy
23 wants to add something -- I mean, the
24 quarter acre is the minimum, but it also
25 says if an exercise program is approved

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 by an equine veterinarian, that that
3 could substitute if you don't have all
4 that space, and we know there are people
5 that have horses in the City, take very
6 good care of them, and are in kind of
7 small spaces. So, again, we're trying to
8 find that middle ground. There are some
9 people that think a quarter acre is not
10 enough, but, again, we're trying to be
11 reasonable, knowing that, as
12 Mr. Abernathy said, there's been a long
13 history of people owning horses in the
14 City.

15 So as long as you can -- if
16 you're under or if anyone is under that
17 quarter acre, takes proper care of their
18 horse, I don't think there would be a
19 problem in getting approval from that
20 veterinarian.

21 MS. TURECKI: Okay. And like
22 there is a way that that can be judged
23 from a body conditioning score that's
24 used nationwide regulating how a horse
25 is -- if he's well taken care of based on

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 a number from zero to nine. There's also
3 a certified manure management plan that's
4 in place with the State of Pennsylvania
5 that people should be required to have if
6 they're not in a certain amount of space.
7 It's based on the number of horses that
8 are on the size of the land, and that
9 should be required rather than having to
10 make them have their manure done every 24
11 hours. If that's what the plan requires,
12 then that would be justified, but
13 removing manure every 24 hours may not be
14 necessary.

15 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Well,
16 before I recognize Councilman Kenney, I
17 would say in all fairness, ma'am, we're
18 talking about a city where most of the
19 time people are pretty close to each
20 other. It doesn't sound like removal of
21 manure every 24 hours is that
22 unreasonable to ask for, to be perfectly
23 honest.

24 MS. TURECKI: And I'm not
25 saying that it is. I'm just saying that

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 there's a plan in place with the state
3 that requires every horse owner to have a
4 certified manure management plan, and
5 that plan is based on the number of
6 acreage or non-acreage, the number of
7 space that -- number of equine are kept
8 on. Whether they're tiny little equine
9 that are miniatures or big draft horses,
10 the amount of manure that they make is a
11 big difference.

12 So I'm not saying that it
13 shouldn't be removed every 24 hours, but
14 that a plan by a certified person would
15 tell you, yes, it has to be removed
16 within this amount of time.

17 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Okay.

18 Councilman Kenney.

19 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Just out of
20 curiosity, I know folks who are horse
21 people, and a lot of them have to board
22 horses in the surrounding counties,
23 Chester County, Delaware County. Is
24 there a market for or would there be a
25 market for personal boarding stables

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 anywhere in the City?

3 I know a lot of folks,
4 certainly up in the Northwest part of the
5 City, West Philadelphia -- and I think
6 it's a terrific thing. I think it's a
7 hold-on-to-our-past kind of, and horses
8 have been obviously extremely important
9 both from an agriculture, social
10 standpoint, and from battle and
11 everything else.

12 MS. TURECKI: Yes.

13 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: It seems
14 like everybody who wants to board a horse
15 not on their own property needs to go
16 outside the City. Would there
17 potentially be a market for individual
18 horse boarding inside the City limits
19 somewhere in a structure that makes sense
20 and is healthy for the horse and
21 accessible to people?

22 MS. TURECKI: Yes. We have --
23 I also am manager, part manager, of the
24 Courtesy Stable, which is a
25 Fairmount-owned property up in Northwest

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 Philly, up in the Andorra section. We're
3 right on the edge of Fairmount Park. And
4 I think that's a very viable option for
5 people to have. It is a little more
6 expensive, but your horse is in an
7 environment where he's with other horses
8 and it's a more acceptable environment
9 for horses.

10 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Does it
11 make any sense in areas of the City where
12 there's tracks of land, like in the
13 internal part of the City? I mean, not
14 only from a horse boarding standpoint,
15 from a socialization standpoint with
16 kids, neighbors?

17 MS. TURECKI: Absolutely.

18 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: There's
19 ways of keeping horses that are clean and
20 sanitary and not offensive.

21 MS. TURECKI: Absolutely.
22 Absolutely. And to remove concrete areas
23 where you can put in green space, whether
24 it's dirt or whatever, you allow more
25 filtration. So it really is a better

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 situation. It's more environmentally
3 friendly as long as it's managed
4 properly.

5 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: I just
6 wonder if it's something that maybe
7 Commerce or somebody should maybe explore
8 to see if it's a business opportunity for
9 folks.

10 MS. TURECKI: I think it would
11 be a great idea. We have a lot of
12 those -- we have Chamounix. We have all
13 those barns on the park area. So, yeah,
14 in the City, it would be definitely well
15 managed, as long as the horses are well
16 taken care of, sure.

17 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Okay.
18 Thanks.

19 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
20 you.

21 MS. TURECKI: Thank you.

22 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Anything
23 else?

24 MS. TURECKI: No. I just think
25 the license part of it might be a little

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002
2 difficult for some people, but, again,
3 you know --

4 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: You mean
5 as far as the fee?

6 MS. TURECKI: As far as the
7 fee. And then also when there's a
8 penalty and the penalty -- I just want to
9 be clear that the penalty is per horse,
10 because in the one situation, I think it
11 was said that there would be, I think, a
12 \$300 penalty, but then if somebody has
13 four horses that are mismanaged or not
14 taken care of properly and they would
15 only be required to pay the \$300 penalty
16 rather than \$400 per horse per license,
17 so what would you pay? I would pay
18 the -- not that I would do it, but
19 somebody would pay the \$300 penalty as
20 opposed to paying the hundred dollar
21 license fee per horse.

22 So the penalty I think should
23 be per horse. If we're going to do a
24 license fee per horse, I think that maybe
25 we should do a penalty per horse, not per

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 person.

3 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Well, the
4 license fee, as you said, it's a hundred
5 dollars. That does not seem, in all due
6 respect, that burdensome. If you're
7 going to have a horse, to have a hundred
8 dollar license fee does not sound
9 burdensome to me.

10 Mr. Abernathy, as far as the
11 violation, would it be per horse or per
12 site?

13 MR. ABERNATHY: Per violation.

14 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Per
15 violation? All right.

16 We can see -- and like with any
17 bill, ma'am, we can see how that goes, if
18 there needs to be adjustments.

19 MS. TURECKI: These are just
20 comments.

21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: No. I
22 understand.

23 Any other questions or
24 comments?

25 (No response.)

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: We have
3 former Councilman Kelly here with us, who
4 I think everyone knows was a strong
5 advocate for animals while he was here in
6 City Council, among many other issues.

7 Councilman Kenney, maybe he
8 could be the co-host.

9 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: I think
10 Abernathy is out and Jack is in.

11 I'm sorry, Brian. You just got
12 bumped.

13 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: We want a
14 new like Animal Planet show here and
15 you've been nominated to be the host of
16 it, Jack.

17 But please, whatever comment
18 you'd like to make.

19 MR. KELLY: Thank you. I'd
20 just like to make a comment. It feels
21 very strange to be on this side of the
22 room during the Committee hearing, but in
23 case people forgot, I'm Jack Kelly. I'm
24 a former Councilman of the City of
25 Philadelphia.

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 I'm here actually as a member
3 of the Mayor's Animal Advisory Committee,
4 which we fully support this bill. I
5 think it's a long time coming. I think
6 we're the only major city that doesn't
7 have any guidelines whatsoever on the
8 treatment of horses in the City.

9 So I think this is a first
10 step. I think it's going to be a good
11 one. It's not perfect. I don't think
12 any bill when they first come out is
13 going to be perfect, but we'll have to
14 see how effective it's going to be, and
15 eventually maybe during future meetings
16 or whatever we can strengthen those areas
17 which need to be strengthened.

18 I just -- I'm here again. I
19 want to be very brief, because I know how
20 Committee hearings are.

21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: And you
22 were one that you usually told us, I hope
23 they're brief.

24 MR. KELLY: Yes, I hope they're
25 brief.

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: I just
3 want to remind you of that one.

4 MR. KELLY: I know probably
5 Joan Krajewski is up there probably
6 screaming right now to cut it out.

7 But in any case, I just want
8 to, of course, thank you, Mr. Chairman,
9 for introducing this bill, and I want to
10 thank the Committee for their
11 consideration and I hope fully supportive
12 of this bill.

13 Thank you. That's all I have.

14 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: And we
15 always look in the future, as you said,
16 if there needs to be changes, we'll
17 certainly look to your advice.

18 MR. KELLY: I think so. I
19 think it's a first step.

20 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Yes.
21 Right. Okay. Thank you.

22 Any questions or comments?

23 (No response.)

24 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
25 none, thank you both very much.

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 MS. TURECKI: Thank you.

3 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Is there
4 anyone else here to testify on Bill
5 121002?

6 (No response.)

7 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
8 none, that concludes the hearing of the
9 Committee on Law and Government and we
10 will go into the public meeting.

11 The Chair recognizes Councilman
12 Kenney for amendment on Bill 120960.

13 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Thank you,
14 Mr. Chairman. I move that the amendment
15 to Bill No. 120960 be approved.

16 (Duly seconded.)

17 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: It's been
18 moved and seconded.

19 All in favor?

20 (Aye.)

21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Opposed?

22 (No response.)

23 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Hearing
24 none, the amendment is approved.

25 Councilman Kenney.

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002

2 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Thank you,
3 Mr. Chairman. I move that Bill No.
4 120960, as amended, be reported out of
5 this Committee with a favorable
6 recommendation and a request made for
7 rules suspension to allow for first
8 reading at our next Council session.

9 (Duly seconded.)

10 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: It's been
11 moved and seconded.

12 All in favor?

13 (Aye.)

14 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Opposed?

15 (No response.)

16 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Hearing
17 none, Bill No. 120960, as amended,
18 reported out of Committee favorably with
19 a rules suspension.

20 Councilman Kenney.

21 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Thank you,
22 Mr. Chairman. I move that Bill No.
23 121002 be reported out of this Committee
24 with a favorable recommendation and a
25 request for rules suspension to allow

1 2/13/13 - LAW & GOV'T - BILLS 120960 & 121002
2 first reading at our next Council
3 session.

4 (Duly seconded.)

5 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Moved and
6 seconded.

7 All in favor?

8 (Aye.)

9 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Opposed?
10 (No response.)

11 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Hearing
12 none, Bill No. 121002 reported out of
13 Committee favorably with a rules
14 suspension.

15 Being no further business
16 before this Committee, the Committee on
17 Law and Government is adjourned.

18 Thank you very much.

19 (Committee on Law and
20 Government concluded at 10:35 a.m.)

21 - - -

22

23

24

25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the
proceedings, evidence and objections are
contained fully and accurately in the
stenographic notes taken by me upon the
foregoing matter, and that this is a true and
correct transcript of same.

MICHELE L. MURPHY
RPR-Notary Public

(The foregoing certification of this
transcript does not apply to any reproduction
of the same by any means, unless under the
direct control and/or supervision of the
certifying reporter.)

A Abernathy 2:24 3:2,3,5 5:12 11:22,25 12:5,8 15:2,16,19 16:10,14,17 17:2,13,18 18:22 19:12 26:10,13 27:10 Abernathy's 8:19 ability 12:23 able 7:6,9 8:8,17 10:17 17:16 absolutely 16:25 17:18 23:17,21 23:22 acceptable 23:8 access 4:23 accessible 22:21 accurately 33:5 acre 13:8 18:17 18:24 19:9,17 acreage 21:6 actions 3:20 4:8 Activity 1:18 11:15 add 18:23 additional 4:25 10:9 adequate 13:12 adjourned 32:17 adjustments 26:18 admire 17:4 ads 5:15 advertised 1:16 2:20 advertisements 3:19 4:7 advertisers 8:17 advertising 3:10 3:25 4:11 advice 29:17 Advisory 28:3 advocate 27:5 advocates 14:4 age 8:6,9	agree 15:3 agriculture 22:9 allow 23:24 31:7 31:25 amended 31:4,17 amending 1:13,17 2:15 11:13 amendment 3:24 4:4,9 5:10,12 30:12,14,24 amendments 5:8 amount 20:6 21:10,16 Andorra 23:2 and/or 33:22 animal 12:10,13 14:10 15:4,5,11 16:8 27:14 28:3 animals 14:9 15:8 15:10 17:6 27:5 annual 3:18 4:6 annually 4:10 answer 4:25 14:14 17:16 apply 33:20 approached 2:22 6:8 18:5 approval 19:19 approved 13:11 18:25 30:15,24 approximately 3:21 area 24:13 areas 23:11,22 28:16 articulating 10:12 attractive 8:16 audience 7:10 audited 9:18 Authority 16:5 average 3:18 4:6 aware 14:3 Aye 30:20 31:13 32:8 a.m 1:7 32:20 B	balance 4:19 banned 15:14 barns 24:13 based 6:22 19:25 20:7 21:5 basic 18:20 basis 16:9 battle 22:10 believe 4:3 8:15 9:21 10:3,9 14:4 benefit 10:10 benefits 10:11 best 6:18 better 23:25 big 21:9,11 bill 1:13,17 2:9,12 2:14 3:8,9,14 9:8,9 10:13,16 11:5,10,12 12:12 13:3,10 17:25 26:17 28:4,12 29:9,12 30:4,12,15 31:3 31:17,22 32:12 BILLS 3:1 4:1 5:1 6:1 7:1 8:1 9:1 10:1 11:1 12:1 13:1 14:1 15:1 16:1 17:1 18:1 19:1 20:1 21:1 22:1 23:1 24:1 25:1 26:1 27:1 28:1 29:1 30:1 31:1 32:1 board 21:21 22:14 boarding 21:25 22:18 23:14 Bob 5:24 9:5 BOBBY 1:11 body 19:23 Bogle 5:24 6:13 8:23,25 9:5,5 11:2 Boston 7:12 breadth 17:5 Brian 2:24 3:5	11:22 12:8 16:22 27:11 brief 28:19,23,25 bumped 27:12 burdensome 26:6 26:9 business 24:8 32:15 businesses 13:25 C call 9:24 calls 12:15 capture 7:10 8:8 care 12:10 18:18 19:6,17,25 24:16 25:14 carriage 13:25 carry 9:12 carrying 8:12,13 case 27:23 29:7 cause 18:15 certain 1:15,18 2:19,21 11:16 11:18,20 20:6 certainly 6:13 15:21 22:4 29:17 CERTIFICATE 33:2 certification 33:19 certified 20:3 21:4,14 CERTIFY 33:3 certifying 33:23 Chair 1:10 2:8,10 30:11 Chairman 29:8 30:14 31:3,22 Chamounix 24:12 change 9:22 changed 7:5,20 changes 3:9,24 8:14 29:16 changing 4:17 Chapter 1:13	2:15 charming 6:14 cheek 16:4 Chester 21:23 Chief 3:6 12:8 circulated 4:4 circulation 3:13 3:16 7:15 circumstances 13:20 cities 12:20 15:14 city 1:2,6,14 2:17 3:10 4:19 5:14 5:15 12:20 15:6 15:21 19:5,14 20:18 22:2,5,16 22:18 23:11,13 24:14 27:6,24 28:6,8 City's 3:13,15,18 4:6 Clark 5:25 6:19 6:20 10:24 Clarke 4:13 Clarke's 10:16 Class 6:15 clean 23:19 cleanliness 12:18 clear 25:9 CLERK 2:14,24 5:24 11:12 17:21 close 20:19 Code 1:14,17 2:16 6:23 11:14 come 6:7 9:7 18:4 28:12 coming 5:23 28:5 comment 12:4 27:17,20 comments 8:19 17:10 18:9 26:20,24 29:22 Commerce 24:7 commercial 13:23 Committee 1:3 2:4,8 3:5 12:7
--	--	--	--	--

27:22 28:3,20 29:10 30:9 31:5 31:18,23 32:13 32:16,16,19 community 9:16 10:5 14:22 companies 14:2 competitors 7:19 complaints 12:15 compliment 16:22,25 comply 13:16 concern 8:20 17:16 concerned 12:18 concerning 1:15 2:18 3:19 4:7 concluded 32:20 concludes 4:24 14:13 30:8 conclusion 14:3 concrete 23:22 conditioning 19:23 conditions 2:21 11:21 13:6,7,12 14:9 Conduct 1:18 11:15 confined 9:25 consider 16:7 consideration 29:11 contained 33:5 continue 4:21 contract 16:18 control 12:10,14 14:11 15:4 33:22 Control's 15:6 conveyed 10:8 cops 16:18 correct 33:8 cost 8:16,18 10:9 costs 3:18 4:6,11 4:18 Council 1:2 3:10	4:13 5:15 10:16 18:12 27:6 31:8 32:2 Councilman 1:10 1:10,11,11 2:2,7 2:8,9,25 3:4 5:3 5:7,16,20 6:3,6 6:10,17 8:21 9:2 9:3 10:14,22 11:4,8,23 12:2,3 12:4,6 14:15,16 15:13,17,24 16:2,3,12,15,19 16:21,24 17:4,7 17:8,12,19,23 18:3,7,21 20:15 20:16 21:17,18 21:19 22:13 23:10,18 24:5 24:17,19,22 25:4 26:3,14,21 27:2,3,7,9,13,24 28:21 29:2,14 29:20,24 30:3,7 30:11,13,17,21 30:23,25 31:2 31:10,14,16,20 31:21 32:5,9,11 Council's 3:19 counties 9:16 21:22 county 9:19 21:23 21:23 couple 7:17 course 7:18 29:8 Courtesy 22:24 co-host 27:8 cruelty 15:11 cultural 15:21 curiosity 21:20 current 9:13,22 currently 6:23 7:23 8:12 16:18 cut 29:6 Cynthia 17:22 18:11	D daily 3:12,12 decreased 7:15 definitely 24:14 Delaware 21:23 demands 4:19 demographic 8:5 denied 9:13 Dennis 5:25 department 4:2,7 description 13:4 difference 21:11 different 7:20 difficult 25:2 direct 33:22 Director 3:7 6:21 12:9 dirt 23:24 distinction 6:15 15:3 distracted 5:9 dog 16:18 doing 16:5 dollar 25:20 26:8 dollars 26:5 doubt 12:5 draft 21:9 due 6:23 26:5 Duly 30:16 31:9 32:4	24:2 equine 13:11 18:12 19:2 21:7 21:8 establishments 13:22 eventually 28:15 everybody 22:14 evidence 33:4 Executive 6:21 exercise 13:10 18:25 expect 3:20 4:9 expensive 23:6 explore 24:7 exposure 9:24 extreme 13:20 extremely 22:8	fiscal 4:20 folks 21:20 22:3 24:9 food 13:13 foregoing 33:7,19 forgot 27:23 former 27:3,24 foul 12:18 four 25:13 free 7:9 friendly 24:3 fully 10:13 28:4 29:11 33:5 further 11:19 32:15 future 28:15 29:15
		E edge 23:3 effective 28:14 efforts 4:13 either 3:16 14:23 employed 8:9 enclosure 13:15 enforce 15:11 enforcement 11:20 entire 9:15 entitled 1:14,17 2:16 11:14 environment 4:17 23:7,8 environmentally	F fact 6:23 9:11,12 failing 13:16 Fairmount 13:24 23:3 Fairmount-own... 22:25 fairness 20:17 far 14:5 25:5,6 26:10 favor 18:13 30:19 31:12 32:7 favorable 31:5,24 favorably 31:18 32:13 February 1:7 fee 13:4 25:5,7,21 25:24 26:4,8 feels 27:20 file 13:5 filtration 23:25 Finally 4:12 find 4:21 15:5,18 19:8 fine 13:18 first 2:12 6:11,14 8:23 28:9,12 29:19 31:7 32:2	G Generally 12:16 getting 19:19 go 6:11,14 8:23 22:15 30:10 goes 14:5 26:17 going 25:23 26:7 28:10,13,14 good 2:2 3:2,3 8:25 9:3,20 11:23,25 12:6 15:25 19:6 28:10 Goode 1:10 2:9 governed 15:12 governing 12:21 Government 1:3 2:5 30:9 32:17 32:20 GOV'T 3:1 4:1 5:1 6:1 7:1 8:1 9:1 10:1 11:1 12:1 13:1 14:1 15:1 16:1 17:1 18:1 19:1 20:1 21:1 22:1 23:1 24:1 25:1 26:1 27:1 28:1 29:1 30:1 31:1 32:1

great 16:20 24:11 greater 9:23 10:4 green 23:23 Greenlee 1:10 2:2 2:10,25 3:4 5:3 5:7,16,20 6:3,6 6:10 8:21 9:3 10:14,22 11:4,8 11:23 12:3,7 14:15 15:13,17 15:24 16:21 17:7,12,19,23 18:3,7,21 20:15 21:17 24:19,22 25:4 26:3,14,21 27:2,13 28:21 29:2,14,20,24 30:3,7,17,21,23 31:10,14,16 32:5,9,11 ground 15:18 19:8 grown 7:25 guidelines 28:7	29:11 hoping 8:10 horse 12:16 13:2 13:3,4,9,19 15:20 19:18,24 21:3,20 22:14 22:18,20 23:6 23:14 25:9,16 25:21,23,24,25 26:7,11 horses 1:18 11:17 11:18 12:15,21 13:7 14:6,8,19 14:20,22 15:15 18:16,19 19:5 19:13 20:7 21:9 21:22 22:7 23:7 23:9,19 24:15 25:13 28:8 host 27:15 hosting 16:9 hours 13:14 20:11 20:13,21 21:13 hundred 25:20 26:4,7	IRS 8:13 issue 15:22 issues 15:23 27:6	lady 6:15 land 20:8 23:12 landscape 7:4,20 largest 3:13 7:23 9:18 law 1:3 2:4 3:1 4:1 5:1 6:1 7:1 8:1 9:1 10:1 11:1 12:1,20 13:1 14:1,5 15:1 16:1 17:1 18:1 19:1 20:1 21:1 22:1 23:1 24:1 25:1 26:1 27:1 28:1 29:1 30:1,9 31:1 32:1,17,19 laws 15:11 legal 3:14 9:12,25 legislation 3:21 3:24 4:14 12:24 13:21 14:6 Levinson 17:21 license 13:2,4,23 24:25 25:16,21 25:24 26:4,8 licenses 8:14 licensing 1:18 11:16 13:17 limits 22:18 liquor 8:14 little 5:23 21:8 23:5 24:25 long 15:20 19:12 19:15 24:3,15 28:5 look 29:15,17 looking 8:3 lot 21:21 22:3 24:11	12:9 manner 4:3 manure 13:14 20:3,10,13,21 21:4,10 Marconi 2:11 5:22 11:9 17:20 market 7:5,7 21:24,25 22:17 markets 7:7 matter 33:7 Mayor's 28:3 ma'am 20:17 26:17 mean 16:12 18:19 18:23 23:13 25:4 means 6:19 33:21 median 8:6,8 meeting 30:10 meetings 28:15 member 28:2 members 3:4 12:7 methods 7:21 Metro 6:21,24 8:4 8:7 MICHELE 33:14 middle 15:18 19:8 miniatures 21:9 minimum 13:5 18:24 mismanaged 25:13 money 16:7 morning 2:3 3:2,3 8:25 9:4 11:24 11:25 12:6 move 30:14 31:3 31:22 moved 30:18 31:11 32:5 MURPHY 33:14 muskrats 16:13
H	I	J	K	M
Hall 1:6 happy 4:25 14:14 hardship 18:15 healthy 14:24 22:20 heard 10:2 hearing 27:22 30:8,23 31:16 32:11 hearings 3:11 28:20 helpful 9:22 Henon 1:11 2:8 highlight 5:10 Hillel 17:21 history 15:20 19:13 hold-on-to-our-... 22:7 honest 20:23 hope 28:22,24	idea 10:17 24:11 identical 4:3 5:13 identify 6:11 18:8 impact 13:22 important 22:8 improve 14:8 include 13:7,12 including 13:24 increase 17:3 increased 4:18,23 12:14 individual 1:18 11:15 12:25 22:17 information 4:22 inside 22:18 intent 14:6 internal 23:13 intricate 17:5 introducing 29:9	Jack 27:10,16,23 JAMES 1:11 Jennifer 5:24 6:20 Joan 29:5 job 15:8,9 JR 1:10 judged 19:22 justified 20:12	Kenney 1:11 2:7 6:17 12:4 14:17 16:2,3,12,15,19 16:24 17:4 20:16 21:18,19 22:13 23:10,18 24:5,17 27:7,9 30:12,13,25 31:2,20,21 kept 12:16 13:5 14:20,23 21:7 key 8:3 kids 23:16 kind 14:17 16:6 19:6 22:7 know 4:14 5:8 13:21 17:14 19:4 21:20 22:3 25:3 28:19 29:4 knowing 19:11 knowledge 17:6 knows 27:4 Krajewski 29:5	major 12:20 28:6 managed 24:3,15 management 20:3 21:4 manager 22:23,23 Managing 3:6
L		L		N
L 33:14		L 33:14		name 3:5 8:14 12:8 17:20

18:10 nationwide 19:24 nearing 8:7 necessarily 14:7 14:19 necessary 7:21 20:14 need 28:17 needs 4:20 22:15 26:18 29:16 neighborhood 12:17 neighborhoods 14:12 neighbors 23:16 new 4:21 7:11 13:17 27:14 news 4:17 newspaper 3:14 7:4 9:14,18 newspapers 3:12 10:2 nine 20:2 noise 12:19 nominated 27:15 non-acreage 21:6 Northwest 22:4 22:25 notes 33:6 notice 4:15 notices 1:14,15 2:17,19 3:11 4:2 6:24 8:11,13 9:12,25 10:6,10 notification 4:20 nuisance 14:11 number 12:14 20:2,7 21:5,6,7 O objections 33:4 obtain 13:2 obviously 22:8 offensive 23:20 offer 3:23 8:17 Okay 5:16 8:21 10:14 19:21	21:17 24:17 29:21 one-quarter 13:8 open 10:17 13:8 operate 13:25 opportunities 10:7 opportunity 9:7 9:24 10:4 11:3 24:8 opposed 25:20 30:21 31:14 32:9 option 23:4 ordinance 1:13,17 2:15 11:13 18:14 organizations 13:24 ought 16:7 outside 22:16 overwhelmingly 9:9 owner 21:3 ownership 15:15 15:20 owning 12:25 19:13 P paid 6:25 7:4,15 8:5 panel 5:23 park 13:24 23:3 24:13 Parking 16:4,6 part 22:4,23 23:13 24:25 particular 10:5 patience 2:4 pay 25:15,17,17 25:19 paying 25:20 penalties 11:19 13:16 penalty 25:8,8,9 25:12,15,19,22	25:25 Pennsylvania 1:6 18:12 20:4 people 8:9 15:7 15:10 18:16 19:4,9,13 20:5 20:19 21:21 22:21 23:5 25:2 27:23 percent 7:16,25 perfect 28:11,13 perfectly 20:22 person 17:15 21:14 26:2 personal 21:25 Philadelphia 1:2 1:6,14,17 2:16 6:22 7:11,14,24 8:9 9:6,15 10:5 11:14 12:11 22:5 27:25 Philadelphia's 16:8 Philly 23:2 pigs 16:16 place 20:4 21:2 placed 6:24 plan 13:10 20:3 20:11 21:2,4,5 21:14 Planet 16:8 27:14 please 2:11 6:6,11 11:9,24 18:3 27:17 police 13:18 poorly 7:18 portion 10:4 possibilities 10:18 posted 3:11 posting 3:15 potbelly 16:16 potentially 22:17 power 13:19 PRESENT 1:9 President 4:13 10:16 12:10 pretty 20:19	principle 18:20 private 12:22,25 13:6 probably 10:11 14:22,23 29:4,5 problem 19:19 problems 14:12 14:21 proceed 6:12 proceedings 33:4 program 18:25 proper 19:17 properly 24:4 25:14 property 12:22 22:15,25 proposed 12:24 protect 14:5,7,10 14:19 15:7,10 provide 1:18 4:22 10:3 11:16,17 11:19 14:10 provided 13:9,19 provides 3:14 5:13 13:10 providing 9:7,23 provisions 1:15 2:18 PSPCA 16:17 PSPCA's 15:9 public 4:15,22 7:10,22 8:10 30:10 33:15 publication 1:14 2:16 3:16 6:25 7:24 publications 4:18 7:12,16 8:6 10:18 published 1:15 2:20 put 23:23 Q quarter 18:17,24 19:9,17 questions 5:2,5,18	8:23 10:20 14:14 17:9 26:23 29:22 quite 8:16 quorum 2:7 R Raccoons 16:14 16:15 rapidly 4:17 reach 7:21 8:3,11 read 2:12 11:9 readers 8:4 readership 7:25 reading 31:8 32:2 ready 12:4 real 15:6 really 7:9 10:12 14:25 15:10 18:19 23:25 reasonable 19:11 received 12:14 recognize 14:16 20:16 recognizes 30:11 recommendation 31:6,24 record 2:6 6:12 18:9 reference 9:8 refuse 6:14 regarding 12:15 registering 13:2 regulating 19:24 Regulation 1:17 11:14 regulations 4:2,8 5:14 related 3:18 4:6 relief 12:23 remind 29:3 removal 13:13 20:20 remove 23:22 removed 21:13,15 removing 20:13 reported 31:4,18
--	---	---	--	---

31:23 32:12 reporter 33:23 reproduction 33:20 request 31:6,25 require 6:16 12:25 required 1:15 2:19 20:5,9 25:15 requirements 3:10,25 5:14 9:23 11:17 13:17 requires 13:3 20:11 21:3 residents 12:17 12:22 14:10 resolve 14:11 respect 11:18 26:6 response 5:6,19 6:5 10:21 11:7 17:11 18:2 26:25 29:23 30:6,22 31:15 32:10 responsibility 15:6 restriction 9:14 revising 1:14 2:17 right 7:24 8:4,22 9:25 15:15,24 23:3 26:15 29:6 29:21 rising 4:18 room 1:6 27:22 roughly 4:10 RPR-Notary 33:15 rules 31:7,19,25 32:13 S salary 17:3 Sales 6:21 salesperson 9:20	sanitary 23:20 save 3:21 4:10 saving 8:18 saying 20:25,25 21:12 says 18:25 score 19:23 screaming 29:6 second 5:9 seconded 30:16 30:18 31:9,11 32:4,6 section 23:2 secure 13:15 see 10:6 24:8 26:16,17 28:14 Seeing 5:20 10:22 11:8 17:12 29:24 30:7 seek 12:23 seize 13:19 sell 9:17 sense 22:19 23:11 sensitive 15:23 service 15:7 services 4:19 9:15 session 31:8 32:3 share 7:3 shelter 13:13 show 7:4 27:14 side 27:21 sir 15:2,16,19 site 26:12 situation 14:21,24 24:2 25:10 size 20:8 slightly 18:17 small 19:7 smells 12:18 social 22:9 socialization 23:15 socioeconomic 15:22 somebody 24:7 25:12,19 sorry 5:8 27:11	sound 20:20 26:8 space 13:8,9 19:4 20:6 21:7 23:23 spaces 19:7 SPCA 15:4 speak 7:18 14:17 speaking 12:16 spite 9:11 stable 13:23 22:24 stables 21:25 Staff 3:6 12:9 standpoint 22:10 23:14,15 state 15:12 20:4 21:2 stay 17:14 stenographic 33:6 step 28:10 29:19 stewardship 4:21 strange 27:21 strengthen 28:16 strengthened 28:17 strive 15:9 strong 27:4 strongly 9:9 structure 22:19 substitute 19:3 successful 16:5 supervision 33:22 support 3:7 9:10 10:13 12:12 28:4 supportive 29:11 sure 5:25 16:23 18:14 24:16 surrounding 21:22 suspension 31:7 31:19,25 32:14 T table 2:23 6:9 18:6 take 19:5 taken 19:25 24:16 25:14 33:6	takes 19:17 talking 20:18 Team 12:11 tell 5:10 9:19 18:22 21:15 terms 2:21 11:20 terrific 16:20 22:6 testify 3:7 11:5 12:12 17:15,24 30:4 testimony 4:24 14:13 thank 2:3 4:12 5:3,21 8:22 9:6 10:15,23,24 11:2 14:15 15:25 17:7,13 24:19,21 27:19 29:8,10,13,21 29:25 30:2,13 31:2,21 32:18 Thanks 24:18 thing 14:17,18 22:6 things 7:3,5 8:3 think 5:22 14:20 15:3,4 16:7,21 17:2 19:9,18 22:5,6 23:4 24:10,24 25:10 25:11,22,24 27:4,9 28:5,5,9 28:10,11 29:18 29:19 three 3:12,17 4:5 time 9:19 20:19 21:16 28:5 tiny 21:8 title 1:17 2:12 11:10,13 today 2:13 10:12 11:11 told 28:22 tongue 16:4 tools 14:11 totally 15:15	tracks 23:12 transcript 33:8,20 transparency 4:15 treatment 28:8 Tribune 9:6,17 tried 15:22 true 15:14 33:7 trying 15:18 19:7 19:10 Turecki 17:22 18:10,11 19:21 20:24 22:12,22 23:17,21 24:10 24:21,24 25:6 26:19 30:2 type 8:4 U understand 26:22 unreasonable 20:22 upwards 8:7 usually 28:22 U.S 7:13 V version 16:8 veterinarian 13:11 19:2,20 viable 23:4 Vice 2:7 violation 26:11,13 26:15 visuals 7:2 vital 4:16 W W 1:10 Walsh 5:25 6:4 want 4:12 25:8 27:13 28:19 29:3,7,9 wants 17:15,24 18:23 22:14 Wars 16:6 water 13:13 way 19:22
--	---	--	--	---

ways 4:21 23:19	10 1:17 11:13	400 1:6		
website 3:15 10:8	10:10 1:7			
Wednesday 1:7	10:35 32:20	6		
weekly 16:9	120960 1:13 2:14	60 8:7		
West 22:5	3:1,8,9 4:1 5:1			
we'll 8:24 28:13	6:1 7:1 8:1 9:1,8			
29:16	10:1 11:1,6 12:1			
we're 6:25 8:13	13:1 14:1 15:1			
9:14 15:17	16:1 17:1 18:1			
18:13,20 19:7	19:1 20:1 21:1			
19:10 20:17	22:1 23:1 24:1			
23:2 25:23 28:6	25:1 26:1 27:1			
we've 7:6,9 8:17	28:1 29:1 30:1			
15:22	30:12,15 31:1,4			
whatsoever 28:7	31:17 32:1			
width 17:5	121002 1:17 3:1			
WILLIAM 1:10	4:1 5:1 6:1 7:1			
WILSON 1:10	8:1 9:1 10:1			
witness 2:22,22	11:1,12 12:1,12			
6:8 18:5	13:1 14:1 15:1			
Witnesses 6:8	16:1 17:1 18:1			
18:5	19:1 20:1 21:1			
wonder 24:6	22:1 23:1 24:1			
work 4:16 7:6	25:1 26:1 27:1			
world 7:8	28:1 29:1 30:1,5			
	31:1,23 32:1,12			
Y	13 1:7			
yeah 24:13				
year 3:22 8:2	2			
years 3:17 4:5	2/13/13 3:1 4:1			
7:17 12:13	5:1 6:1 7:1 8:1			
York 7:11	9:1 10:1 11:1			
younger 8:5	12:1 13:1 14:1			
	15:1 16:1 17:1			
Z	18:1 19:1 20:1			
zero 20:2	21:1 22:1 23:1			
	24:1 25:1 26:1			
\$	27:1 28:1 29:1			
\$100 13:3	30:1 31:1 32:1			
\$12,000 4:10	20 7:25			
\$200,000 3:22	2013 1:7			
\$300 13:18 25:12	21-1700 1:14 2:15			
25:15,19	24 13:14 20:10,13			
\$40,000 4:9	20:21 21:13			
\$400 25:16	27 7:16			
\$693,000 3:20				
1	4			
	40-year-old 8:8			